
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE  
            SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

                                                 Tuesday, June 14, 2022 
                                Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 

         6:30 p.m. 
 
Videoconferencing: meet.google.com/gfu‐gxkv‐hdh 

Audio: +1 515‐532‐7470 PIN: 596 155 616# 

 
 
All videoconferencing options may be subject to modifications. Please check www.sau63.org for the latest 
information. 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER-Jim Kofalt-Chair  
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda.  In the 

interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments 
(including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent 
in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE and KEB.    

  
V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report    

ii. Principals’ Reports  
iii. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report  

b. Letters/Information 
i. Call for Resolutions NHSBA 

ii. General Assurances FY 2023  
 

VI. WLCTA   
 

VII. WLC SUMMER COMPETENCY RECOVERY & ESSER III FUNDS 
 

VIII. POLICIES 
i. Re-adopt DFA-Investment Policy 

ii. IJL-Library Materials-4th Read 
 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
i. Facilities Committee 

ii. Budget Liaison 
iii. Policy Committee 
iv. Technology Committee 

 
XI. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  

a. Resignation-Haleigh Abell-LCS ABA Therapist 
 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS   



 
XIII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   

 
XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (C)   

i. Review Non-public Minutes 
ii. Student Matter 

 
XV. ADJOURNMENT  

 
INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐June 28, 6:30 PM at WLC 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Superintendent’s Report 
 

 
 
Our wonderful Kindergarten students and staff recently spent a great 
day at Friendly Farm in Dublin meeting the animals!  This photo 
was taken at Adams Park in Peterborough where the students had a 
picnic lunch in the afternoon. 
 
 
 
 

 
 LCS had its Welcome Day for incoming Kindergarten students.  The students and families met their 

teacher and each other, had fun activities, and learned more about our school.  Currently, we have 
37 incoming Kindergarten students registered.  On May 25th, our LCS students also spent part of 
their day at FRES meeting their 1st grade teacher and exploring their new school  

 
 Our preschool held their graduation on June 7th.  Fifteen  
               students played games and were recognized for their  
               accomplishments.  Thank you to Candice Heinemann,  
               Michele Boette, Tracy AuCoin, and Haleigh Abell  
               for a job well done!   
 
 We are working with Healey Tree Works to remove the two large trees located in front of LCS.  

Both trees are reaching the end of life and safety concerns are significant moving forward.  Healey 
Tree Works provided us with an estimate of $1,800 to remove both trees.  I spoke with Mr.  Boland, 
Lyndeborough town administrator, to possibly take the wood debris and store for families in need 
next winter. 

 
 On behalf of LCS, I want to extend our gratitude to Rick McQuaid and Milton Leavitt, two 

Lyndeborough highway crew members, who took it upon themselves to clear all of our accumulated 
debris collected from two separate clean up days this year. We simply can’t thank them and 
Lyndeborough enough! 

 
 We are working on setting up a meeting this month with our police departments to review our 

security audits (completed in May 2018), as well as to specifically discuss our lockdown protocols 
to determine if a different procedure needs to be considered.  Our goal is to prepare a presentation 
for the school board at the July 19 board meeting.  Attached is a link to a safety training I have participated 
in.  https://www.alicetraining.com/resources-posts/featured-videos/ 

 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and 
responsible citizenship. 

              Peter Weaver                                                      Ned Pratt                                                       Kristie LaPlante                   
Superintendent of Schools                           Director of Student Support Services                   Business Administrator           

  



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL

57 SCHOOL ROAD
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086

(603) 732-9230
www.sau63.org

Dr. Sarah Edmunds, Principal                                                                           Amanda J. Kovaliv, School  Counseling Coordinator
Kathryn Gosselin, Assistant Principal                                                                              Alice Bartoldus, Middle School Counselor

June 2022 Principal’s Report

Congratulations to the Class of 2022!
On June 3, 2022, WLC graduated its 50th class
from this building.  Members of the class of
1972, the first class were in attendance to wish
the graduates well and offer advice. It was a
memorable evening for all!  Congratulations to
the class of 2022!

Sports

On Sunday, May 29th, senior Samantha Boette defended
her title as the fastest girl in the 200 at the Division-III
State Meet. She also finished 2nd in the 100 meter final.
Great job, Sam!

Congrats to the WLC Varsity Baseball Team!  They beat
#1 seed Derryfield on June 4 and will head to the semi
final on June 8 against Newmarket.

Spring Sports Awards Night took place on June 6.  It was a
wonderful chance to hear the highlights of each season
from the coaches and honor our spring athletes.

http://www.sau63.org


Tech Ed Class Receives Certificate of Appreciation

Members of the Bent-Burke
American Legion Post #10 visited
WLC on June 3 to present
certificates of appreciation to Ms.
Manning’s Tech Ed class who
restored The Sacred Heart Church
WWII Soldier Honor Roll.  The
certificate states: In recognition
and sincere appreciation of
outstanding workmanship which
contributed to the rebuilding of the
Sacred Heart Church WWII
Soldier Honor Roll.

End of the Year Fun
We have had a successful and fun end of the year!  Field trips such as the 8th grade heading to
the MV Mt. Washington and the 7th graders enjoying  a trip to the Christa Mcauliffe Planetarium
were fun and educational!  The entire school enjoyed a faculty vs. student softball game on June
6.  The students won the game 13-9.  I am sure we will come away with the win next year!



THE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLCTHE WLC
REPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTERREPORTER

MAY 2022MAY 2022

WLC EARTH DAY/COMMUNITY
SERVICE DAY 2022

The WLC schools celebrated Earth Day on April 22 by cleaning up trash, planting �owers, and
painting around the schools and greater community. Working in tandem with the Wilton
Community Center roadside cleanup initiative and Sara Spittel, students, teachers, and
administration donned vests, grabbed trash bags, and headed out to show appreciation for



their communities. Middle school students remained nearer to WLC to clean up the school
grounds and the Middle/High School Student Leadership Team donated lilac bushes and spent
the morning planting them as well as day lilies and iris bulbs as part of their school
beauti�cation project. Upper classmen headed further out into the community. The senior
class and the National Honor Society headed to Florence Rideout Elementary School (FRES)
to clean the surrounding areas and help the elementary school students spread student
painted “kindness rocks” throughout. They also removed rocks and sticks from the playground
to make it a better place to play. Fourth and �fth grade students made the long, uphill trek to
Carnival Hill with the seniors and National Honor Society and picked up trash along the way.
The sophomores and juniors jumped on a bus to Lyndeborough and helped with cleanup at the
Lyndeborough Central School (LCS) as well as on Forest Road. In addition to all of this good
work, three students were chosen by the town to paint murals around the storm drains. Josh
Boulanger, Senja Sours, and Mia Gorman's designs were chosen and they spent the day
completing those projects.

Troy Brennan joins a young student in placing kindness rocks around FRES.



Austin Kimball and student
from FRES work to clean up
Carnival Hill.

Alex Nelson puts a fresh coat
of paint on the WLC
greenhouse.

Zoey Hall, Taylor Bouley,
Ryleigh Smith, and Mrs.
Schauer rake leaves at LCS.

7TH GRADE NATURE'S CLASSROOM

On Earth Day, Nature's Classroom was able to visit the 7th Graders at WLC's soccer �eld
woods perimeter. The seventh graders were able to experience interactive activities such as
mutation nation, animal tracking, compass and orientation and �nally the cycle of life how
everything is connected. The vast majority of students enjoyed camou�age! It was a perfect
day for the 7th graders to enjoy Earth Day and pick up some soccer �eld trash.

https://s.smore.com/u/401f/4afe1426082b9cf76fc7e7426730c3e5.jpg
https://s.smore.com/u/9dc4/0f942215cc38eb90617c6cf9cbec9885.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/43e4/9cdd376696db472e0c01f07f6c2816e1.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/8c5d/628ffd1ac51287244db1bf9ed127d8fc.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/f1b8/525a371a90ebf838ccc42f567b3a6af6.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/a2e0/ad59b46e49d1d98aa13dd7ab5cc0dfa8.jpeg


APRIL STUDENTS OF THE MONTH

MIDDLE SCHOOL
6th Grade:

The sixth grade teachers are recognizing this student as the April Student of the Month
for his enthusiasm and eagerness to learn. He is always asking questions and seeking
help when he needs, and positively collaborates with classmates on assignments. He has
quite a dazzling sense of humor that is contagious amongst his peers and teachers. In his
free time, he is a karate student, boy scout, and Shrek enthusiast. You may have spotted
him taking iconic 6 foot strides in a poison ball match. The Dream Team would like to
congratulate James “Kayden” Graham as April Student of the Month!
The Dream Team would like to recognize this student for her hard work and effort across
the four classes. She has an awesome work ethic, and is someone who is always looking
for ways to improve her assignments. She is a very creative, kind, and helpful peer to her
teachers and classmates. The Dream Team would like to congratulate Bella Jaffe as their
April Student of the Month!

7th Grade:
Throughout the entire school year, this student has gone above and beyond when helping
her peers. She has been a kind and patient tutor in and out of class time. She completes
her tasks on time and continues to complete challenge work. Student of the Month
recognizes students who have an awesome work ethic and caring personality for all staff
and peers. She has those qualities and more. She is in band, choir, drama club and is a
member of the National Junior Honors Society. Team Awesome would like to
congratulate Natalie Bergstrom as April Student of the month.

 
This student is a leader in the classroom. He is great at advocating for himself and
helping others when they need it. His teachers have been noticing all of his hard work
lately and appreciate his efforts. Team Awesome is proud to announce Keagan Lamos-
Garon is the April Student of the Month.

8th Grade:
This student has really stepped it up in school over the past month. He has been working
hard, completing all of his assignments on time, and coming to class with a positive
attitude. In addition, this student is always willing to help out his teachers and
classmates. Outside of school, this student enjoys playing video games and hanging out

https://s.smore.com/u/e436/f292ec58a938b379f781a8c8bb0c0dc1.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/ff89/8871b60639664c5b1b72b2110e1c7e6b.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/5ee8/4054f3024b44a65ecd4955d3eb9020ad.jpeg


with his friends. He has a funny sense of humor, and is a great Advisory Ball competitor.
Without further ado, congratulations to Caiden Lambert!

 
This 8th grade student is being recognized for her dedicated work ethic and fun sense of
humor. She has been known to spend the extra hour outside of school meticulously
completing her assignments, and enjoys sharing her creative ideas with her teachers. As
an active Junior National Honor Society tutor, she understands the meaning of effort,
responsibility, and integrity, which will take her far in life. Her teachers are so proud of
how much she has grown throughout middle school. Congratulations to Molly Meehan,
the Dream Team’s April Student of the Month!

HIGH SCHOOL
WLC would like to congratulate the 9th and 10th grade students of the month for April-
 
Congratulations goes out to Kevin LaChance and Eli Fish from the 9th grade AND
 
From the 10th grade a big congratulations goes out to Chloe Levesque and Chloe Abbott



SPRING CONCERT



THE WLC MUSIC DEPARTMENT
The Spring Concert was held on May 26 at 7:00 pm. The program had a theme of "Adventure"
and selections such as the theme from The Avengers and the Imperial March were played by
the band as well as Let it Go sung by the chorus. It was a wonderful evening full of music and
fun! Thank you to Ms. Taryn Anderson for her never-ending dedication to the WLC music
department.



MEMORIAL DAY RECOGNITION AND
REMEMBRANCE

Spring Concert 2

Spring Concert 1





PROM

Samantha Boette read Flanders Field during the Wilton Memorial Day Parade and Jacob
Manning read The Gettysburg Address. WLC's attendance secretary, Cheryl Carter, who is
president of the American Legion Auxiliary lead the parade alongside the Legion Commander,
Gary Jenson, and the Sons of the American Legion Commander, Bill Goddard.



Sammi Grace and Jacob
Manning
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver 

Ryleigh Smith and Lilly
Souhlaris
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver 

Nathan LaChance
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver

https://s.smore.com/u/af84/b3e88a26f16a352b281f7084036c0d60.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/164d/8b15e3092d9ea724baad4071edbd3e45.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/6f98/520e0878ba7850ece945ec9215478bf2.jpg


Troy Brennan and Avery Krug
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver 

Shawn Bishop
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver 

Emily Dubois and Ethan Smith
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver 

Dwayne Thompson
 
Phot credit: Caide Weaver

https://s.smore.com/u/e8bd/aeb2082774a951cd55a1c8608924d63d.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/3d21/1a1b9a5086ae53e272893a704fb7caa4.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/d6ab/0c84296e5315fc9926518830ff6597cd.jpeg


Ty Bacci and Jason Bausha strike a dashing pose before heading into the party.



Ella Morris and Madison Raymond
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver 



DANCE TEAM

Justin Marcinuk
 
Photo credit: Caide Weaver



SPORTS

The WLC Dance Team performed their end of year showcase on May 23. Captain Amber Silk
picture above did her senior solo. Team member are Ella Wibben (co captain), Shawn Bishop,
Maddy Parker, Vanessa Pedraza, and Lilian Wrobel. They are coached by Melodie Jones.

JV BASEBALL

https://s.smore.com/u/1bb4/7faf3d0e6ec30eda41efd8e90b188446.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/bc83/abd20b0c983c6a6feb7a1d5941d9fdb0.jpeg
https://s.smore.com/u/976e/67e915778080d60f72e6402c796a68fa.jpeg


Jason Caragher gets ready to catch at the JV baseball game on May 17. They won 11-1!



Harry Krug surveys the �eld during the JV baseball game on May 17.

JV SOFTBALL



After practicing their slides in the rain JV Softball teammates Cailin Swett, Danika Stratton,
Madison Labrecque, and Izzy Swett pose for a picture.
 
Photo credit: Andrew Tyler

VARSITY SOFTBALL



Seniors Madison Raymond, Emily Dubois, and Lilly Souhlaris celebrate Senior Day at their
softball game on May 17th.
 
Photo credit: Andrew Tyler



Emily Dubois at the mound.
 
Photo credit: Andrew Tyler

Ryleigh Smith at the mound.
 
Photo credit: Andrew Tyler

VARISTY BASEBALL



Sean Brennan pitches during a very rainy, muddy couple of innings. The game was called off
due to rain.

TRACK AND FIELD



Nate Brown heads for the �nish line.
 
Photo credit: Andrew Tyler

































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Curriculum Coordinator Report: June 14th, 2022 
 
Curriculum  
Status of Curriculum Documents  
The staff within each building this year has worked tirelessly to complete the documentation of 
curriculum.  The internal curriculum databases at each school are approaching completion, with 
a few lingering areas to be completed over the summer.  Over the summer, we have teachers 
working on specific curriculum tasks, including integrating literacy and social studies in the high 
school, math curriculum in grades K-8, Spanish language curriculum, and integrating technology 
in the elementary school. We are working on building the external curriculum database with 
these final documents, which should be ready for the start of the next school year.   
 
Professional Development  
June 14th Professional Development Day  
On June 14th, we are having our final professional development day of the year.  The goal of this 
day to wrap up and reflect on the year we just experienced, as well as look forward to next 
year’s vision and upcoming changes. During the morning, we are hosting breakfast and whole 
staff meetings at WLC. After lunch, staff are reporting back to their buildings for any remaining 
building specific meetings and checkout.  
 
Math Summit 
On June 15th we are hosting a math summit for teachers throughout the district in response to 
student data and achievement. The goal of this day is to get clear on what we expect students 
to know and be able to do, as well as how we will assess their mastery related to those 
standards and competencies.  We will begin the day by reviewing data and summarizing 
discussions that have already taken place during data dives, then examine the standards and 
Performance Level Descriptors from the New Hampshire DOE to ensure we are clear on what 
students are expected to know and be able to do.  From there, we will work in small groups to 
analyze current math assessments to see where they align and where we could revise to ensure 
we are meeting the expectations of the standards.  
 
Assessment  
Raw SAS Data  
I am including below a table of our raw New Hampshire State Assessment data that is currently 
available at the time of writing this report (June 7th). In the fall, we will receive the state 
average, as well as other norming information, which helps us analyze our data more clearly. As 
an administration, we will be examining these scores more holistically over the summer as we 
begin to make plans and adjustments to next year.  
  

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

District Curicum Coordinator  

  
192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   

                       603-732-9227 

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and 

responsible citizenship. 

 

 

Emily Stefanich, M.Ed. 

District Curriculum Coordinator 

  

  



English Language Arts 

Grade 1 – Below 
Proficient 

2 – Approaching 
Proficient 

3 – Proficient 4 – Above 
Proficient 

3rd Grade 35% 20% 29% 16% 

4th Grade 19% 42% 23% 16% 

5th Grade 17% 12% 49% 22% 

6th Grade 11% 29% 42% 18% 

7th Grade 5% 38% 49% 8% 

8th Grade 9% 19% 59% 13% 

 
Math 

Grade 1 – Below 
Proficient 

2 – Approaching 
Proficient 

3 – Proficient 4 – Above 
Proficient 

3rd Grade 29% 25% 32% 14% 

4th Grade 13% 34% 31% 22% 

5th Grade 22% 54% 15% 10% 

6th Grade 26% 42% 26% 5% 

7th Grade 30% 43% 18% 10% 

8th Grade 15% 52% 30% 3% 

 
Science 

Grade 1 – Below 
Proficient 

2 – Approaching 
Proficient 

3 – Proficient 4 – Above 
Proficient 

5th Grade 40% 29% 14% 17% 

8th Grade 24% 30% 30% 15% 

11th Grade 48% 13% 39% 0% 

 
End of Year STAR Data  
The tables below represent our end of year STAR data.  STAR Early Literacy was administered in 
Kindergarten at LCS. STAR Reading and Math were administered to all students in grades 1-8 at 
both FRES and WLC.  As mentioned above, this data will be used by administration as we work 
to evaluate and revise for next year. Tables with comparisons from fall, winter and spring are 
also attached for your reference. This will be our final administration of STAR as we move to 
iReady in the fall.  
 

STAR Early Literacy  

Grade Urgent 
Intervention 

Intervention On Watch Proficient or 
Above 

Kindergarten 28%  26% 6% 40% 

 
  



 
STAR Reading 

Grade Urgent 
Intervention 

Intervention On Watch Proficient or 
Above 

1st Grade 28% 26% 6% 40% 

2nd Grade 13.5% 13.5% 16% 57% 

3rd Grade 19% 5% 25% 51% 

4th Grade 0% 3% 49% 48% 

5th Grade 9% 9% 35% 47% 

6th Grade 2% 15% 24% 59% 

7th Grade 7% 13% 39% 41% 

8th Grade 5% 13% 41% 41% 

 
STAR Math 

Grade 1 – Below 
Proficient 

2 – Approaching 
Proficient 

3 – Proficient 4 – Above 
Proficient 

1st Grade 5% 12% 19% 64% 

2nd Grade 3% 5% 16% 76% 

3rd Grade 11% 15% 25% 49% 

4th Grade 6% 6% 20% 68% 

5th Grade 12% 14% 14% 60% 

6th Grade 7% 15% 24% 54% 

7th Grade 7% 13% 40% 40% 

8th Grade 8% 5% 33% 54% 

 
 
 
 



Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % %
K 9% 26% 21% 44%

Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % %
K 11% 11% 22% 55%

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % %

K 28% 26% 6% 40%

Early Literacy 

Early Literacy 

Spring Data 

Winter Data

2021-22 Kindergarten STAR                    
Fall Data 

Early Literacy 



Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % % Grade % % % % Grade % % % %
6 0% 19% 24% 52% 6 0% 18% 15% 63% 6 2% 15% 24% 59%
7 4% 17% 41% 30% 7 2% 16% 36% 36% 7 7% 13% 39% 41%
8 0% 8% 39% 47% 8 3% 5% 42% 47% 8 5% 13% 41% 41%

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % % Grade % % % % Grade % % % %
6 7% 9% 28% 49% 6 5% 8% 28% 53% 6 7% 15% 24% 54%
7 9% 17% 41% 26% 7 2% 16% 36% 34% 7 7% 13% 40% 40%
8 0% 8% 29% 55% 8 5% 11% 24% 58% 8 8% 5% 33% 54%

M
at

h 
Re

ad
in

g
WLC STAR Data 2021-22

Fall Winter Spring



Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % % Grade % % % % Grade % % % %
1 22% 13% 24% 39% 1 12% 34% 12% 42% 1 28% 26% 6% 40%
2 25% 13% 28% 33% 2 18% 16% 11% 55% 2 13.50% 13.50% 16% 57%
3 27% 13% 20% 40% 3 21% 6% 23% 50% 3 19% 5% 25% 51%
4 9% 14% 34% 34% 4 3% 6% 47% 44% 4 0% 3% 49% 48%
5 10% 22% 24% 44% 5 7% 7% 31% 55% 5 9% 9% 35% 47%

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Urgent 
Intervention Intervention On Watch Proficient

Grade % % % % Grade % % % % Grade % % % %
1 13% 15% 22% 44% 1 2% 16% 28% 54% 1 5% 12% 19% 64%
2 3% 10% 30% 55% 2 3% 3% 24% 70% 2 3% 5% 16% 76%
3 16% 16% 22% 45% 3 14% 16% 16% 54% 3 11% 15% 25% 49%
4 6% 3% 34% 49% 4 6% 9% 36% 48% 4 6% 6% 20% 68%
5 15% 17% 24% 44% 5 0% 12% 24% 64% 5 12% 14% 14% 60%

M
at

h 
FRES STAR Data 2021-22

Re
ad

in
g

Winter SpringFall 











































WLCTA Board Report 
 

Thank you!   
 
First of all, we want to thank the board for giving the WLCTA the opportunity this year to present 
at these meetings. It has been nice to come and share all of the great things that have been 
going on throughout the district.  It has also been a very educational and eye-opening 
experience to witness the process that goes into making important decisions within our district. 
While the year had its fair share of challenges it was also full of positivity, academic growth, 
meaningful change, and teamwork.  We feel very optimistic for next year and we hope that this 
level of collaboration continues for many years to come.   
 
 
WLCTA Scholarship Winner 
 
We recently awarded the WLCTA Scholarship worth $500 
to Madeleine Straw. She is a graduating senior and she 
plans to go to college to become a Social Studies teacher.  
We are very proud of her as well as all of the seniors!  
 
 
Teacher Shout-Outs! 
 
FRES 

 
● The FRES classroom teachers met in teams with WIN and Mrs.Chenette to analyze end 

of year data and brainstorm entry points for beginning of year learning. Everyone 
present found the experience to be insightful and the time to think and plan ahead 
through a data lens, beneficial. 
 

● Both of the FRES spring concerts were a great success, and the kids loved getting up on 
stage and sharing music with the community. 
 

● Celebration of Learning was a HUGE success.  The students loved showing off their 
hard work and the teachers enjoyed spending time with all of the families that attended.    

 
WLC 

 
● 7th grade is working on a project where they are researching locations in Europe to plan 

a dream vacation. They are all really into it. Covers a lot including climate, history, 
culture, and even budgeting. 
 

● 8th grade went on a trip to Lake Winnipesaukee the past Friday and went on the Mt 
Washington cruise. The kids were awesome and they had a great time.  
 

● Mary Beth Wiley was hired with her MSc in Library Studies, so she had to earn her K-12 
Library Media Specialist Certification. After two years, she just completed it! 

 



DFA - INVESTMENT 
 
 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board authorizes the Wilton-Lyndeborough 
Cooperative School District Treasurer, working in conjunction with the Superintendent and 
his/her designee and pursuant to RSA 197:23-a, to invest the funds of the District subject to the 
following objectives and standards of care. 

OBJECTIVES 

The three objectives of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity, and yield. 

1.  Safety of principal is the foremost objective in this policy. Investments shall be 
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital by mitigating 
credit and interest rate risk. This will be accomplished by limiting the type of investments 
and institutions to those stipulated by statute and fully covered by FDIC insurance or 
collateral approved pursuant to applicable law. 

2.  Liquidity of the investment portfolio shall remain sufficient to meet all operating 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 

3.  Yield. The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a 
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary 
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. 

STANDARDS OF CARE 

1.  Prudence. The standard of prudence to be used by the District Treasurer and 
Superintendent, or his/her designee involved in the investment process, shall be the 
"prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall 
portfolio. They are directed to use the Government Finance Officer Association’s 
Recommended Practices and Policy Statements Related to Cash Management as a guide 
to the prudent investment of public funds. 

2.  Conflict of interest. Officials involved in the investment process shall not engage in or 
have a financial interest in any activity or investment that could conflict with or could 
create the appearance of conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or 
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  Investment 
officials, Auditors, and School Board Members shall disclose to the School Board any 
personal, business-related, or financial interests in financial institutions with which they 
conduct business that represent more than one percent ownership. They shall also 
disclose financial relationships or business responsibilities that represent more than one 
percent ownership in the organization that could be related to the impartial management 
of the District’s financial assets.  Where conflicts of interest or the appearance of conflict 
of interest cannot be avoided through policies or procedures approved by the School 
Board, affected officials(s) shall recuse themselves from subject decisions. 

3.  Internal Controls. The District Treasurer and Superintendent or his/her designee shall 
establish a system of internal controls which shall be documented in writing. The internal 
controls shall be reviewed periodically by the School Board and an independent auditor. 



The Board will annually review and adopt the investment policy. 

Legal References: 
RSA 197:23-a, Treasurer’s Duties 
RSA 383:22, Public Deposit Investment Pool 
RSA 386:57, Collateralization of Funds 
 
See Policy DFA-R 
 
Final Adoption: June 2, 2010 
Revision:  February 11, 2014 
2nd Revision: April 7, 2015 
Annual Adoption: May 10, 2016, May 9, 2017, May 8, 2018, April 30, 2019,  
May 26, 2020, May 25, 2021 



 

 

IJL – LIBRARY MATERIALS 
 
 

Related Policies: KEC, KEC-R 
  

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board believes the mission of the school library 
is to encourage recreational reading, support classroom curriculum, encourage curiosity, and to 
provide an inviting, authentic, and dynamic learning environment by providing various 
perspectives so that students may develop analytical reading and critical thinking skills. 

As “Libraries: An American Value” states, “We affirm the responsibility and the right of all 
parents and guardians to guide their own children’s use of the library and its resources and 
services.”  The WLC School District has a legal and professional obligation to ensure that all 
students have free access to a diverse range of library resources and services that is, age 
appropriate, inclusive, regardless of content, approach, or format.  This principle of library 
service applies equally to all users. 

Materials for school libraries shall be initially recommended by the appropriate professional 
personnel in consultation with administration and faculty.  The Superintendent/designee shall 
adopt and enact any procedures necessary to provide a system for the Selection Criteria, 
Acquisition Procedures, and Materials Reconsideration/Parental Objection.   

In the event of Materials Reconsideration/Parental Objection, the District will act in accordance 
with steps outlined in School Board policy KEC AND KEC-R. 

 
First Reading: April 5, 2022 
Second Reading: May 10, 2022 
Third Reading: May 24, 2022 
Final Adoption:    



 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, May 24, 2022 3 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 4 

     6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
The videoconferencing link was published several places including on the meeting agenda. 7 
 8 
Present: Jim Kofalt, Brianne Lavallee, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Dennis Golding, Matt Mannarino (6:35pm), Tiffany Cloutier-9 
Cabral, Charlie Post (online), and Darlene Anzalone 10 
 11 
Superintendent Peter Weaver, Business Administrator Kristie LaPlante, Principals Sarah Edmunds and Kathleen Chenette, 12 
Assistant Principal Katie Gosselin, Director of Student Support Services Ned Pratt (online), Technology Directors Jonathan 13 
Bouley and Nicholas Buroker, Curriculum Coordinator Emily Stefanich, and Clerk Kristina Fowler 14 
 15 

I. CALL TO ORDER  16 
Chairman Kofalt called the meeting to order at 6:31pm. 17 
 18 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 19 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 20 
 21 

III. PUBLIC HEARING-UNANTICPATED REVENUE RSA 198:20-b 22 
Chairman opens the hearing at 6:32pm. Provided an explanation of the purpose and reviews the breakdown of funding sources, 23 
which were provided. The hearing’s purpose is to provide an opportunity for the Board to accept grant money that has come to 24 
the district. The State requires that we hold a public hearing and formally take a vote to accept the funds. Ms. LaPlante provided 25 
a review of funds in more detail. In FY 22, the district budgeted $256,442. We anticipate receiving $1,080,856.40. Because of 26 
the American Rescue Plan and relaunch of robotics, we have an excess of appropriation in the amount of $824,414.40. That 27 
significant increase is related to the CARES or ESSER III and robotics.  Chairman asked for questions/discussion from the 28 
Board. Ms. LaPlante confirms for Mr. Vanderhoof that the ESSER funds ($684,010.01) are not included in the budget and were 29 
not discussed in an unanticipated revenue hearing therefore it is new as far as that discussion. You can use it all at once but don’t 30 
have to and as long as we say yes, we accept these funds, we meet the criteria for the public hearing. Chairman asked for 31 
questions/comments from the public who are present and online. None heard.  32 
Chairman closes the hearing at 6:36pm. 33 
 34 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Golding and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept and expend an additional 35 
$824,414.40 for the purposes outlined in the special programs.  36 
Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried unanimously. 37 
 38 

IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 39 
Chairman requested to move up the library materials discussion from its position in #9 to right after public comments. 40 
 41 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Golding to accept the adjustments to the agenda. 42 
Voting: via roll call vote, seven ayes; Mr. Post did not vote-technical difficulties, motion carried. 43 
 44 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 45 
The public comment section of the agenda was read.  46 
Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment. There was 47 
no public comment.  48 
 49 

 POLICIES 50 
i.  IJL-Library Materials-3rd Read/Librarians Attending 51 

Ms. Stephanie Loiselle, Librarian at FRES/LCS and Ms. Mary Beth Wiley, Librarian at WLC presented on why they want a 52 
policy for library materials. They want to empower students, parents and the community to have an outlet to express their 53 
opinions, and feelings, participate and have a choice in what their kids are taking out. They want a transparent process using 54 
procedures that they will follow in case of concerns or challenges. They want people to know where to go and can utilize the 55 
process across the district. They want to prevent bias in handling situations and want all people and materials treated the same 56 
during any reconsideration of materials process. Having a policy ensures everyone will follow the same procedure. The policy 57 
will help them do the right thing and follow the right procedure. It could be construed as a student violation of a student’s First 58 
Amendment Rights to remove materials if it was done to prevent access of ideas, viewpoints or opinions. There is Supreme 59 
Court case law that speaks to that. Book challenges are increasing. They provided statistics on this. This is the highest number of 60 
book bans according to the ALA’s Office for Intellectual Freedom since they started tracking it 20 years ago. It is becoming 61 



 

   

more frequent and want to be ready in case it happens here. The librarians feel considering the increase in challenges, it is of the 62 
utmost importance to get it on the books now before it becomes a larger issue in our district. Ms. Wiley reviewed a case that 63 
happened in the Bedford School District where the librarian faced a new challenge and didn’t know how to respond on her own 64 
when someone wanted to remove a book from her district’s library. She did not have a procedure to follow. They created a 65 
policy to help going forward. Information was presented such as 81% of schools have a plan and procedure in place; they 66 
reviewed nearby districts that have reconsideration policies and information on where the book bans are happening in the US. A 67 
copy of the presentation can be found with the minutes. Ms. Anzalone thanked them for coming in, she agrees we need a policy 68 
in place and questions how we decide what books will in the library and questioned if they anticipate people coming to them 69 
asking for books to be put in the library. Ms. Loiselle responded that they have selection criteria and passed out copies to the 70 
Board. Ms. Wiley reviewed it includes things like finding out what the classes need, it meets high standards literacy, artistic and 71 
aesthetic quality, physical format, appropriate for the subject area and age, social and emotional wellbeing of the students, 72 
accurate and appropriate content, they strive for favorable reviews and use legitimate sources verified by professional personnel, 73 
provide a global perspective, and they provide a variety of resources,  in physical and digital format, online, eBooks etc. They 74 
balance the cost with the need and follow the criteria when they purchase books. Both certified librarians follow the criteria. Ms. 75 
Loiselle spoke of a couple situations she encountered last year which were handled internally through administration. These 76 
situations do come up and they need to have a plan to follow. Ms. Wiley agrees she would like a plan in place and would feel 77 
more safe if there were rules for her to follow a documented system. A question was raised to provide an example of a book that 78 
would not meet the criteria provided, as at least 8 of the 11 are very subjective and go toward viewpoint and opinion. Ms. 79 
Loiselle responds their goal is to represent all viewpoints and opinions. A question was raised how the criteria list would help if 80 
a book were challenged. Ms. Wiley responded if a book was challenged they could say they have the list and looked at the 81 
publications, the professional personnel reviews and it is designated for this age range, etc. agrees it is a little subjective. Both 82 
librarians are certified in creating a quality collection and put a lot of thought into what they purchase. They want to be sure the 83 
books are checked out by students and enjoyed, and have literary value. It was noted, seeing this is not a public library but a 84 
school library, if we are going to have a policy it has to have “teeth” in it. It has to be something we can enforce and explain. The 85 
subjectivity for any literature will be tough to have a concrete discussion with someone when it is so subjective. When putting a 86 
policy in place we need to be clear about how we will do it. There is potential for a big debate. There is concern raised the policy 87 
doesn’t become something that administration, Board and staff can just say it meets the policy so there is nothing I can do about 88 
it. Once we have a policy who will go through all the books we have and make those decisions. Ms. Lavallee clarified the 89 
difference between the procedure and policy. She did follow up with Attorney Phillips on this, the selection criteria we are 90 
discussing is not part of the policy. It is part of the administrative procedure, which is different from the policy and legally is 91 
held to a different standard. Although it is referenced in a policy and there are other procedures referenced in other policies but 92 
are not voted on by the Board and do not rise to the level of legal standing as a policy. It was noted that is the problem having a 93 
policy that doesn’t specifically say what it is intended to do. Discussion continued. A question was raised if they would ban a 94 
book all together or just for a specific child and an example was given. Ms. Loiselle explained she thinks it’s a conversation you 95 
have with your child, she can be included in the conversation and has been in the past if a child has tried to check out a book 96 
their parent would not want them to have. They don’t want to ban books, but this policy is about removing books from the 97 
shelves and that is what is needed because it opens us up to lawsuits and other challenges and sets a precedent and we need to 98 
treat everyone the same and follow the same policy. The process should be a multistep process and involve others who are 99 
analyzing the book itself and determine if it is suitable for every student in the school. Ms. Lavallee reviewed some of the 100 
discussion they had in the policy committee; they have been working on this since the middle of winter. The development of the 101 
policy is to communicate the values, philosophy and culture of our schools, what are we saying, what is the message. The 102 
procedure/process is how that is carried out it is 2 separate things. When we developed this policy, we said we wanted to affirm 103 
the responsibility and right of all parents and guardians to guide their own children’s use of the library and resources. The 104 
decision of what book is appropriate is subjective and not just to the professionals but to the parents. By removing a book from 105 
the shelf you may be appeasing a group of parents who want it removed but you may also be upsetting a group of parents who 106 
want that materials to their child. The policy is saying we are making unbiased decisions based solely on professionals not 107 
guided by any sort of predetermined agenda. Discussions continued including the policy specifically identifies the 108 
Superintendent or designee will create procedures necessary. It was clarified if there were to be an issue there would be a 109 
committee to discuss the issue of that book. Ms. Lavallee referred to policy KEC that specifically says a committee is set up to 110 
review all materials; it would be that same committee. It was noted this is establishing a framework for procedures, it is not 111 
outlining specific criteria, it is saying there should be a mechanism to express it. Discussions continued including when we make 112 
a policy we are saying this is what we shall do, there is no wiggle room. There was discussion regarding the language in the 113 
policy and the external sources referenced. Ms. Lavallee shared the Policy Committee had not met since the last board meeting 114 
and has consulted with Attorney Phillips to create an alternative version and the draft will got the committee before bringing it to 115 
the Board. The 2nd paragraph was taken out. She read the draft. The Attorney preferred this version but noted both are acceptable 116 
from a legal perspective. Mr. Vanderhoof wants to see something in the policy that in some ways states effectively that we 117 
acknowledge this is a school library and largely serving minors and with that in mind, acknowledging that there are other places 118 
to get materials such as town libraries, etc. Mr. Mannarino expressed the criteria is a larger discussion for another day and could 119 
change over time and the framework should be constant and there should be some mechanism in place to review or challenge 120 
and he does not think that should change over time. Ms. Lavallee expressed the Policy Committee needs direction. Mr. Post 121 
voiced his thought is that it goes back to the committee for review and bring it back to the Board to either approve or change it 122 
rather than just hearing it tonight. He does not want to vote on something that not be ready and we should take our time on this 123 



 

   

and be purposeful. It was expressed the intent tonight was not to vote on it but the committee needs direction. Mr. Kofalt read 124 
the new version entirely. He recommended that the new version be emailed to the members and a date be given to provide 125 
feedback on it. He does not want the committee to be discouraged that they are taking a deep dive into this and believes the 126 
results will be a solid policy. This removes the ambiguity and external references. It also talks about balancing with age 127 
appropriate content for students. Ms. Lavallee will send this out and has a schedule conference call with Attorney Phillips; she 128 
will make sure we are not missing anything. No objection heard to the approach. The librarians were thanked for coming.  129 
 130 

VI. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 131 
i. Business Administrator’s Report 132 

Ms. LaPlante spoke of all the work done on the grants; she is working on getting grant assurances for 3 other grants and is 133 
pleased with the progress. She spoke about the last meeting and a brief discussion about unspent balances remain and she wants 134 
to go back and see the history of funds and allocations for FY 22 and compare this with the FY 23 to see if the decrease has been 135 
picked up. A question was raised regarding the transfer to food service that is showing up at $21,000. She responded we are 136 
running a great surplus due to the free and reduced lunch foods now. She confirms that number will look considerably better.  137 

ii. Director of Student Support Services Report 138 
Mr. Pratt reviewed his report is about student mental health. He provided a review of our school counseling caseloads and the 139 
part-time social worker and school psychologist caseloads. We range between 10.1% in elementary and 16.6% for counseling for 140 
general education students and 21% for special education (SPED) students. He spoke that when you look at the counseling 141 
caseloads it looks pretty reasonable. One thing we saw during the pandemic and now is these are the student who have more 142 
intense needs in general education or SPED. It does not account for the ones who touch-base once or twice a month. Everyone is 143 
focused on mental health and it is a situation that is taking up a lot of our counselors and part-time school psychologist and social 144 
workers time. We did have a contracted full-time psychologist this year but broke that up with a part-time social worker and 145 
psychologist. We have been really blessed to have 2 great people working with us who focus on students and families and 146 
collaborate with our staff. In his position as Director of Student Support Services and being in the schools almost daily, he sees a 147 
concern that it could become a greater number who are looking to access counseling or services. In the past, we referred student 148 
for outside counseling and there would be a waitlist. The waitlist is now is longer and in some cases months before a student can 149 
access any services. This doesn’t help the schools. As your Director, I am asking you to help me solve this problem. He is taking 150 
a 2-prong approach, the first is to present the data to you and secure the additional services for school psychologist and social 151 
worker. He would like to use the current budgeted amount for the school psychologist and ESSER money to provide service to 152 
our school for all the kids, not just for SPED kids and be able to help these folks on a full-time basis next year. The second prong 153 
is the acknowledgement that we need to look at some sort of formalized program for students whether mental health or 154 
behavioral, this would be part of that approach. Whether SPED or general education or hybrid it is to address short and long-155 
term needs in students in the area of mental health and address them in the schools. He will bring forward a more detailed plan in 156 
June. He was asked to clarify if he was asking for additional school psychologist or social worker using ESER funds. Mr. Pratt 157 
responded he would like to make both the current part-time school psychologist and part-time social worker full-time next year. 158 
We have a number of other students who come and go and we have a 3rd group that is undetermined that really are not forth 159 
coming about the issues they are having. We know they are going through some stuff and we need professional folks to help us 160 
with those kids while those numbers look reasonable, the number of kids we need to address is really much higher based on 161 
discussions I have had with staff. A question was raised if he is linking it to COVID. Mr. Pratt responded he will provide a long-162 
term plan on June 14, this would address one year only from ESSER and in the next budget cycle, he will address some 163 
problematic pieces. He confirmed this request is to use ESSER funds for something that was not budgeted, it would go into the 164 
budget moving forward, and he may be able to provide some cost savings at the same time. This is clearly a one-time request for 165 
next year and then it would be addressed through the appropriate budget process. He confirms the numbers are an increase from 166 
prior, at least 30% in SPED, he doesn’t have the percentage increase in general education but knows it is an increase. We hear 167 
from parents and students that need services but are not getting them, some are waiting 6 months to see an outside counselor.  168 

iii. Director of Technology’s Report 169 
Mr. Bouley spoke of this month being light on tickets mostly because there was a week off. They have done more work on 170 
closing new tickets and driving down old tickets, none are more than a year old and are things that need to be done in the 171 
summer such as requiring wires to be run in the hallways. He has been helping the new director Nicholas Buroker who was 172 
present and has come in to spend time on site so we can get him access to documents and technology and make it as smooth as 173 
possible for July 1. He has been great to work with him side by side and get him onboard with some of the documents created for 174 
the Technology Committee, making sure it is as much his as mine. The biggest thing in his report other than introducing Mr. 175 
Buroker is asking for an extension for the temporary help he has had through ESSER funding. He would like to extend this 176 
through the end of August; currently it is funded through end of June. There is a need for help with updating the new and 177 
existing Chromebooks while the director works on cybersecurity goals. He has been trying to work on a non-private version of 178 
security information so that we can have a way for the Board to see the progress being made on goals and discuss it. Chairman 179 



 

   

welcomed Mr. Buroker. Mr. Bouley confirms it has been working out well having the extra person. He was asked at what point 180 
it becomes a non-COVID issue and just something that we need. Mr. Bouley responded we are in the same boat as Mr. Pratt, he 181 
thinks Mr. Buroker would advocate for needing the help. He feels we are just now getting the ticket counts down to a 182 
manageable level and if we lose that position, it will climb right back up. None of the tickets are complicated it just takes time. It 183 
is something that would need to be worked on with the Budget Committee.  He confirms most tickets are around training on how 184 
to use technology. Superintendent Weaver clarifies the request to extend the IT position is to extend it to September 30 to get us 185 
through the summer and get school opened. It was expressed previously we were doing the day-to-day functions in the 186 
technology department but getting to other projects that need attention. Now, we are finally getting to them. An example of this 187 
is the single sign on; we don’t have that in the district, single sign on doesn’t make that go away but helps in the flow of those 188 
tickets. Mr. Bouley agrees it would help and it would reduce the number of passwords people have to remember. We are trying 189 
to automate some of this like making it less time consuming to create a new user. Mr. Bouley was thanked for his commitment 190 
and Mr. Buroker was thanked for attending.  191 

VII. YTD REPORTS 192 
Ms. LaPlante provided the percent remaining in the budget unspent and unencumbered. She spoke of some wages not being 193 
budgeted in the appropriate lines, which she has spoken of before. She provided a report of the percentage of unspent and 194 
uncommitted funds, which is what she will have more detail at a future meeting. The summery report is listed out by type and 195 
object. We are looking at 6.3% of the budget as of May 15 unspent and unencumbered.  The heating oil allocation has helped us, 196 
those funds will remain unspent and they will start to get estimates for the FY 24 budget, what that might look like and what we 197 
are looking at overages on heating oil for next year’s budget but it helps to account for some money unspent and uncommitted 198 
right now. A question was raised why principal on debt was over budget and interest on debt was under budget. Ms. LaPlante 199 
confirmed it was budgeted incorrectly. There is payment schedule published by Municipal Bond Bank and those numbers were 200 
not updated for the FY 22 process. Principal is overspent and interest is underspent she believes. It was noted this format was 201 
useful and it is helpful having the nonwage and wage broken out and color-coded. She notes it was budgeted for FY 23 moving 202 
forward. 203 
 204 

VIII. PTO UPDATES 205 
i. FRES/LCS PTO 206 

Ms. Alyssa Lavoie was present and reports the PTO has been really busy last month. A report was shared with the Board. She 207 
thanked those members who came in to popcorn for the students; we are a small group and anytime we can get participation 208 
takes the burden off us to allow us to focus on other things. The first week of May was Teacher Appreciation Week, we provided 209 
lunches, snacks, and desserts to FRES and LCS staff and sent home forms with kids the week before for them to write a note or 210 
draw a picture to show appreciation. One of their parents, Ms. Gomez did a chalk drawing on the front of the school as well. We 211 
tried to put the effort in to show the teachers how much we appreciate what they do for our kids. May 7 they had the second 212 
annual plant sale and raised $859. The book fair was successful raising $3,700 in scholastic dollars; they have an additional 213 
$2,700 in scholastic dollars earmarked for Ms. Loiselle (donated to FRES) to increase the books. The 5th grade yearbooks are 214 
ordered and the PTO covered the cost 100%. The newly voted in Board includes Ms. Lavoie, President, and Ms. Ally 215 
MacFadzen as Vice President, Ms. Megan Nantle as Secretary and Ms. Chrissy Morrissey as Treasurer.  They are excited about 216 
Field Day if any of you are available, it is all day events, activities, relay races, the fire department, police department are 217 
coming. We will start a new tradition with the 5th grade vs. community members in a kickball game. She reviewed who the 218 
participants are. It will last about 30 minutes and we would love it if any of you can come out. The next meeting is June 7, 6pm 219 
and next year they will meet the 3rd Monday of each month at 6pm in the library at FRES. Chairman Kofalt had come to the 220 
April meeting and that was a huge help, she welcomes board members to attend at least one meeting next year. Chairman Kofalt 221 
thanked Ms. Lavoie and both PTOs and acknowledged how great it is to have that kind of support for staff and students. 222 

ii. WLC PTO 223 
Ms. Crystal Gill was present and reported May started pretty strong for them as well with Teacher Appreciation Week. They 224 
provided an abundance of food throughout the week. Lynn Crouse heads our banner program; we put up 7 more banners. She is 225 
taking it to the next level trying to grow it. It provides some money in and provides advertising for local businesses. We are 226 
trying to find ways to keep the banners up longer and make them more visible. The spring concert is this Thursday at 7pm; we 227 
will put our gear out for the first time. We were able to purchase come to have on hand instead of just having the 2 web stores. 228 
We have step-up night for the 5th graders and plan to attend that, answer any questions for parents and provide information, and 229 
show a friendly face. We have not been at graduation before and have been asked to provide concessions such as water, etc. Our 230 
main focus is to get as much involvement in next year as we can.  We are a small group as well. We are looking into providing a 231 
scholarship for graduating seniors who excel in volunteering and community service above and beyond the normal hours they 232 
need. She still needs to learn a lot about it and will be talking to the guidance counselor about it and hopes to implement it next 233 
year. 234 
 235 

IX. POLICIES 236 
ii. IJL-Library Materials-3rd Read/Librarians Attending 237 

See above, this was moved up on the agenda. 238 
  239 



 

   

X. NARCAN DISCUSSION 240 
Ms. Cathleen Bertoncini, School Nurse was present. Superintendent voiced she has been the go-to in terms of nursing things and 241 
health needs and we really appreciate her. He reports most districts do not have Narcan and the ones that do have clear policies 242 
with specifics. Ms. Bertoncini has done some research on this. Our police department in Wilton does not carry Narcan. Ms. 243 
Bertoncini reached out to school nurses in area districts such as Milford, ConVal, Souhegan and Mascenic. Milford does not 244 
have it and there is nothing in their policies or procedures. The other 3 all have it, it is kept locked in the nurses office, only the 245 
nurse administers it, it is part of their first-aid policy and not available for after school hours or activities, nothing outside the 246 
school day. They also have 2 nurses at each site in those schools. She looked into how we get it and how do we get training. 247 
There is a place in Nashua that would come out, provide it, and train the nurses. The police department does not have it; they felt 248 
confident in the response time of EMS. They are seeing mostly non-opioids and mostly alcohol. Superintendent spoke to Primex 249 
to discuss exposure to liability; she said it is a local decision but if you do it, you will have to be clear in policy and procedure, 250 
who can use it, who has access, what do you do when you dispose of it etc. Implement the policy clearly and consistently. She 251 
said less than 50% of schools in the state have it on their campus. Ms. Lavallee asked for confirmation that the other schools had 252 
2 nurses on site so someone can assess and administer, Ms. Bertoncini confirmed that is correct. Ms. Lavallee asked if she found 253 
out any information of effects of when a patient comes to. Ms. Bertoncini responded that is one of her concerns, based on what 254 
she has read and her own experience the patient can be violent. Ms. Lavallee asked if the training goes over that. Ms. Bertoncini 255 
does not know. Superintendent spoke it is a critical issue, if it is 7 minutes before help arrives, what happens in that 7 minutes do 256 
we shelter in place, does it happen outside, if so who is covering the nurses station if the nurse out on the baseball field. He 257 
thinks some of these issues is what has prevented some districts from having it. Coming out of Narcan and being violent creates 258 
another set of circumstances that we are not prepared to deal with as administration and staff and securing the students etc. A 259 
question was raised if we got data on the prevalence in our community. Ms. Bertoncini did reach out to EMS but did not get a 260 
call back. There is drug monitoring in our state that goes over dose deaths and breaks it out by town. The most recent publication 261 
is August 2021 and says Narcan administration in Lyndeborough is under 0, Wilton is 1-10, it is not clear if that is 1 or 10 and it 262 
would have been helpful to hear from EMS. A question was raised what are the safety concerns other than what was discussed, 263 
what danger are we creating by just having it around, what are the side effects for someone other than unpleasant side effects 264 
giving someone Narcan if one has not overdosed. Ms. Bertoncini did not know the answer to this. Discussion was had the cost is 265 
not terribly high more or less per dose, concern was raised that we hear of Fentanyl being unintentionally used, examples were 266 
given. Looking at all of that it seems cost etc. is not very high compared to saving a life. A question was raised if there is a cost 267 
associated with training. Superintendent spoke of the withdrawal process being unpredictable and we don’t know what those 268 
look like person to person. For us, we are fortunate that the police, are just down the hill, EMS is just down the hill and the fire 269 
department is just down the hill; he would like to think the response time is quick and believes that is why the police department 270 
chose not to deal with Narcan. Ms. Lavallee spoke of having a discussion with a community member talking about when we 271 
look at resources and time what are we directing them to do in the district, and keeping those things in mind, what are we doing 272 
from a preventable standpoint and an education standpoint. Perhaps having a community wellness committee and what resources 273 
can they help in regard to education. Discussion was had it is a good idea to have it, we have AED’s and other stuff we hope not 274 
to use but we have it, cost is not prohibited, training sounds reasonable. Superintendent notes if the Board directs us to have it, 275 
part of the process should be how we handle withdrawal. Ms. Bertoncini asks that if we have it we have it clearly outlined as 276 
what is the expectation, she asks that exceptions be made because although it is in good supply now, that may not always be the 277 
case. We stock Epi-Pens and we are still waiting for them for this year due to a supply chain issue. She wants to be sure we are 278 
not always held to having it, she wants some flexibility. Mr. Vanderhoof believes it should be added to the policy that was just 279 
approved. Ms. Bertoncini expresses she sees the benefit of having it but as the sole clinical person in this building, she wants to 280 
be protected and prepared. She thinks about visitors who she knows nothing about and being put in that situation, she wants to be 281 
sure that we have covered our basis. A question was raised if nonclinical people could be trained to administer Narcan. Ms. 282 
Bertoncini responds you could but that’s a bigger discussion if you want to put that on administration and teachers. She thinks 283 
that is a big ask. Ms. Lavallee did speak to Attorney Phillips about that and he gave specific wording to include from his 284 
experience working with other districts who have it and the nurses were ones who would administer, he did not see any others 285 
trained. Mr. Post spoke that it was a comprehensive presentation and he agrees with Mr. Vanderhoof. He understands there are 286 
some things we didn’t think about it but thinks we should provide the training if the nurses are willing to participate in the 287 
program. Chairman asked for a straw poll of where members are at with this. Mr. Post and Mr. Vanderhoof are for it, Ms. 288 
Anzalone is on the fence and spoke of concern that if people knew we had it would they try to steal it. Ms. Bertoncini responded 289 
that ConVal did have an issue with theft with that and the AED and now they are under lock and key. Superintendent notes there 290 
is no high benefit but can see it happening. Mr. Mannarino is open to having the discussion and exploring it, the training was his 291 
biggest concern. Ms. Cloutier-Cabral is interested in having it if the training is good and there is some kind of uniform training 292 
that everyone gets, some kind of certicate or it is backed by something with some kind of protection like the Good Samaritan 293 
Law should it go wrong. Ms. Lavallee would like more information, there are a lot of assurances she would like before she was 294 
OK to go ahead with it. She is on the fence and would like to thoroughly research it so staff has a sense of support and assurance 295 
from the Board. She has some concerns like Ms. Cloutier-Cabral brought up, and would need to do research. She has concerns 296 
during the day with events being held with the public attending, we don’t know the persons history. Chairman Kofalt is leaning 297 
toward being in favor of it but is concerned about protecting staff. He has concerns about Fentanyl showing up in unsuspected 298 
things and people not knowing it is in there. He believes it is worth exploring. Mr. Golding is not in favor of having it at all. 299 
Hearing that Milford doesn’t have it and they the size of their district and the lack of statistics. Chairman Kofalt suggests next 300 



 

   

step is that it is worth exploring further and questions if we can have the training done without making a commitment. He asks 301 
the Superintendent to research it all and come back to the Board with additional information. 302 
 303 

XI. ACTION ITEMS 304 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 305 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Golding and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to approve the minutes of May 10, 2022 as amended. 306 
Voting: via roll call vote, all aye; motion carried unanimously. 307 
 308 

b. ESSER Request 309 
Superintendent reviewed there are 3 requests for ESSER funding, 1 is to extend the IT help desk support through September 30, 310 
2022 not to exceed $15,000, 2 is to add an instructional interventionist at FRES. This is for a one year teaching position targeting 311 
the 3rd and 4th grade whose early learning growth was most disrupted by the Pandemic. Cost associated is not to exceed $85,015 312 
including wages and benefits. The 3rd is for after school tutoring at FRES for the first semester of 22-23 (about 60 sessions) not 313 
to exceed $19,325. Principal Chenette spoke to the group regarding the request for the instructional interventionist teacher and 314 
provided graphs including outcomes of spring tutoring, phonemic awareness and phonics in grades 1, 2, and 3. The data is laser 315 
focused it is not averaged or scaled scores; these are actual skills and the response to that instruction. She explained what 316 
phonemic awareness is. She reviewed each of the graphs. First grade phonemic awareness shows what they look like when 317 
arrived and outcomes after intervention, which shows progress. Phonics for 1st grade should be in place by the end of 1st grade, 318 
the data is not completely finished. The assessments are individually administered and take more time. Second grade we knew 319 
some came in with issues in phonemic awareness; we took STAR assessment data, which is really a screener to find out if there 320 
is something wrong and you then can dig much deeper to find out what is wrong. We have not completed the end of year. She 321 
reviewed the graphs, which showed some 2nd graders who could not identify letters or sounds that should’ve been in place in 322 
Kindergarten. The graphs show pretty good growth by spring. In the 3rd grade graphs shows significant need in phonemic 323 
awareness in the fall. Intense intervention was provided. In 3rd grade we needed to do a deeper dive in phonics, there has been 324 
significant growth in her opinion. Some are not at grade level still and she is asking for the interventionist to continue the work 325 
and work with letters and numeracy. She expressed if you cannot ready by the 3rd grade your chances are significantly decreased 326 
to become a successful reader. A question was raised if this is something that would go back to normal or is it saying this may be 327 
a permanent need showing that something is not working. Principal Chenette responded something is not working and we are 328 
working on that at FRES. She cannot guarantee 3rd grade or 2nd grade will be spot on when they leave. What she does know if we 329 
were able to make up this kind of ground in a year then another year makes a lot of sense as well as pairing it with tutoring. 330 
Concern was raised after the ESSER funds are gone what does that look like and does the community support that budget if we 331 
want to keep all of it. Its something that was supposed to be related to a COVID issue and it becomes a budget issue. Principal 332 
Chenette acknowledged that and questioned if they have seen the students be this significantly off. Mr. Vanderhoof responded 333 
yes. Principal Chenette voiced that the data left in her office was all put together by percentages or grade level equivalency of all 334 
children. She does not know if it was dug into deeper and if that was shared with the Board. A question was raised what the 335 
interventionists week would look like, what kind of work specifically look like. Principal Chenette responded pulling groups 336 
from the moment they arrived until it was time for the children to go home, no group typically larger than 3 but it would depend 337 
on grade level, attention and need. Ideally, they could come early and do pre-work or stay after and do additional. They would 338 
need planning time and be part of the grade levels IMPACT Team. She needs a certified person. Chairman Kofalt confirms it is 339 
not to exceed $85,015 wages and health combined. Ms. Lavallee thanked Principal Chenette and believes she provided 340 
information that has been lacking and a few gifted students can skew the data and doesn’t let us see the struggling students. She 341 
is happy to see quite a bit of growth and acknowledges the teachers for this. The data is helpful and highlights what they have 342 
been hearing about in relations to the Pandemic and good to see the data on our district specifically. Principal Chenette confirms 343 
she has this for every grade level in math and reading.  Ms. Lavallee noted we did discuss this during the budget season, we had 344 
initially said we needed another teacher and then backtracked saying we could use ESSER funds for an interventionist. Principal 345 
Chenette agrees. A question was raised would this be similar to someone working in W.I.N. program. Principal Chenette 346 
explained it would be much more intense collaborating with the teacher, far more intimate.  She confirms this is not based on 347 
STAR it starts with STAR. These are assessments are well done and she has used them for years. It does not make it difficult to 348 
transfer to a new assessment system. It was noted the STAR data would fully integrate into the next platform. A question was 349 
raised how many students were invited to attend tutoring and was it consistently attended. Principal Chenette confirms tutoring is 350 
voluntary, the attendance was good, and a few families opted to not attend. Summer Academy will be based on the tutoring 351 
model. Superintendent expressed that we are also looking at curriculum; there are other conversations and decision-making 352 
discussions. Our Title I tutors will likely shift to MS in the next 2-3 years. It depends on Free and Reduced lunch. The way it 353 
looks based on data now it will be LCS and MS. That will mean FRES will lose close to 75-80 hours a week of adult 354 
intervention during the school day. It is a huge issue for FRES and we are looking at the data again, he wants to recalculate it. It 355 
only takes a couple of students to shift that and it is not clear if FRES will make the threshold. Principal Chenette expressed we 356 
need to work harder to everyone to fill those Free and Reduced forms out. Principal Chenette reiterated we have the best chance 357 
of closing those gaps before MS. She confirms there are plans for teacher training as well. Superintendent added this is an 358 
important one, it has not been discussed if it will become a budget issue or not yet. Right now, it’s a one-year trajectory. 359 
Teachers are looking at the data, Principal Chenette has a good plan and facilitates those meetings, and they are consistent 360 
because we have the same facilitator. We wouldn’t ask you for this if we didn’t think it would make a difference for the kids.  361 
 362 



 

   

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Golding to extend our IT helpdesk support technician/IT 363 
generalist for an additional 3 months through September 30, 2022 not to exceed $15,000. 364 
Voting: via roll call vote, seven ayes; Mr. Post did not vote-technical difficulties, motion carried. 365 
 366 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino for an instructional interventionist at FRES not to 367 
exceed $85,015 wages and benefits combined.* 368 
 369 
Clarification was asked if this was the plan prior or if this is something new. Principal Chenette clarified we will have 19 370 
students in each 3rd grade next year, she is asking for an additional teacher, not an additional classroom teacher.  371 
 372 
*Voting: via roll call vote, seven ayes; Mr. Post did not vote-technical difficulties, motion carried. 373 
 374 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Golding for the afterschool tutoring program at FRES for the 375 
first semester of the 2022-2023 school year not to exceed $19,325. 376 
Voting: via roll call vote, six ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, Mr. Post did not vote-technical difficulties, motion carried. 377 
 378 

XII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 379 
i.  Finance Committee 380 

The Finance Committee did not meet. 381 
ii. Technology Committee 382 

Chairman Kofalt reviewed the committee met this evening. A draft document was sent this afternoon and a copy has been 383 
handed out. He encourages members to read it following the meeting. He spoke about what they talked about this evening and 384 
what he wants to focus on and we go from here. There are some recommendations in the document but they don’t stand out well 385 
The committee really wanted to focus on a couple of areas including Infrastructure and Security, How does technology support 386 
academic excellence, How do we support technology competency specifically, and the fourth had to do with administration, 387 
internal systems like accounting and purchasing etc.. We are looking at refining some of the recommendations into something 388 
we are making asking the staff to either implement something or explore an idea further and develop it further to come back with 389 
some kind of plan of how it might roll out. In the area of security, Mr. Bouley has already started working on the infrastructure 390 
and security piece. He reviewed some examples. One of the things that seems to be missing is a lot of those things are not 391 
reflected in Board policy. Although he is hesitant, adding more to the list there is a need to do so in this case. We have a 392 
computer and IT policy, which was revised in 2010 and seems very basic and antiquated. He provided an examples and notes 393 
one of the recommendations is that we encapsulate some of the recommendations in this document into Board policy. We may 394 
also want to look at end of life, end of service policies and set some parameters around what we intend to do in terms of 395 
replacement equipment, have compliant equipment and keep us in compliance. Regarding security, we need some governance in 396 
place to mirror what Mr. Bouley has in place. Ms. Lavallee will send him policies EHAA and EHB and will check to see if there 397 
are any updates since 2010 as well as follow up with Attorney Phillips. The Policy Committee can put it together, and then have 398 
the Technology Committee review it before it goes to the Board. He reviewed the bullet points (4, and 5, 6 in particular) that 399 
point to some of things that we need to have in a policy. Superintendent notes for the next Policy Committee the technology 400 
directors can weigh in virtually. Chairman reviewed the second category, “we support academic excellence” and one 401 
recommendation is regarding keyboarding which Ms. Stefanich is working on a plan for implementing that. Regarding “align 402 
professional development more closely with needs for the staff to understand how best to utilize these tools and standardized 403 
that”, Mr. Bouley has already started working on this so that staff doesn’t have to grapple with 5 different tools that do the same 404 
thing etc. standardization and professional development is another recommendation in that category and is in fact already being 405 
done but we want to be able to track progress overtime. The third is more of an overall directive, for the staff to engage in 406 
meaningful integration into the classroom. One of the things we heard from the survey was people feel like technology is used a 407 
bit too much in math in particular. This is a directive for the staff to engage intentionally in that conversation and come back 408 
with their findings and recommendations as to what they are doing to fine tune the approach to using technology in the 409 
classroom. Ms. Lavallee thanked the committee for all their hard work. Ms. Stefanich and Mr. Bouley were thanked for their 410 
efforts. The category of “technical education” this is one that has been interesting and exciting. Chairman spoke of touring 411 
Milford’s CTE program to see what kind of offerings they have there and it is pretty remarkable, video production, accounting, 412 
drone photography, business etc. they have advanced machining equipment, a full commercial kitchen and restaurant. There is a 413 
difference in scale, they have over 700 students in their high school and we don’t have that many students in our entire district. 414 
We are not really thinking of wanting to a CTE here necessarily and certainly not in the short-term. A practical approach may be 415 
to align coursework to create a path to CTE education and doing more to promote awareness of those options for parents and 416 
students. Students need to complete certain coursework before they can get into those programs. It would require aligning the 417 
curriculum here to make it possible, it is possible today but people have to jump through some hoops. We also wanted to ask the 418 
staff to explore opportunities for hands on education. One of those would be robotics programs, a maker-space etc. to introduce 419 
students to the tools such as 3-D printers, CNC machine and other tools to open the door to creativity and could be integrating 420 
with some of the other technology, art, science etc. Under “technical education”, this includes exploring partnerships in the 421 
industry and others to foster practical hands on career relevant activities. He spoke about having a conversation with some 422 
people at UNH; they have an advanced manufacturing program where they host the robotics competitions for the HS. Under the 423 
“technical evaluation”, most are in the category that they are asking the staff to explore these and come back with concrete ideas 424 



 

   

and implementation plans and how to roll it out. Throughout the process we talked about this district not having unlimited funds 425 
and need to be mindful of what we are spending but want to look at ways to work with organizations offering these things and 426 
seeing how we can leverage that. Superintendent spoke about the visit to Mascenic’s CTE program. They only have the auto 427 
technology program currently, it used to be larger and it is a nationally recognized program; it is an impressive place. It was 428 
initiated through community and school interest and they found a way to fund it. When it was built, the community members 429 
built it. It is a good model on how a school can take an idea and bring people together to make it happen. Now it is a recognized 430 
CTE program that receives Perkins money to support it and has a good robust budget. It is a money generator for the school as 431 
well. Chairman reviewed the last category was “administration”; they did not touch on this one much. What do we need to do 432 
with technology to advance administrative functions of the district. There were no recommendations at this time. That is the 433 
general direction we are going. He invites feedback on the document that was shared. The goal is to refine the list of 434 
recommendations and incorporate that into the document to have a roadmap we can return to and follow up on those specific 435 
recommendations, where are we, what are the next steps. As far as the detailed implantation plan, that is where we draw the line 436 
between the board activity governance and the staff coming up with the implantation plan and carrying it forward. This will be 437 
revisited at the next meeting. 438 
 439 

XIII. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 440 
a. Resignation-Joshua Bartsch-WLC Paraprofessional 441 
b. Resignation-Candace Heinemann-LCS Preschool Teacher 442 
c. Resignation-Zachary Frament-MS Science Teacher 443 

Superintendent reviewed the resignations. 444 
 445 

d. Appoint-Alison Dee-FRES Elementary Education Teacher 446 
Superintendent reviewed the recommendation to nominate Ms. Alison Dee, as Elementary Teacher at FRES. 447 
 448 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Golding to appoint Ms. Alison Dee, Elementary Education 449 
Teacher at FRES, salary of $41,500, Masters, Step 2.  450 
Voting: via roll call vote, all aye; motion carried unanimously. 451 
 452 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 453 
The public comment section of the agenda was read. Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the 454 
meeting asking if they wanted to comment. There were no comments to report. 455 
 456 

XV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 457 
Ms. Cloutier-Cabral thanked the PTO at FRES for inviting the Board members in to make popcorn for the kids; it was fun and 458 
great to be in the schools. Principal Chenette did a great job with the presentation were great tonight and showing us the need in 459 
such a specific way and gave us a lot to reflect on. 460 
 461 
Mr. Vanderhoof reiterated his request that as much as possible, to get the board packet information in the board packet. There 462 
were 2 documents here tonight waiting for them and there is no way to process this while they are in the meeting listening while 463 
it is being talked about. It is difficult to take part in the conversation or fully understand what is being presented and it seems to 464 
be happening a lot. 465 
 466 
Ms. Lavallee thanked all the staff members who came in to present and all the work they did to prepare. She thanked the senior 467 
class for allowing her to come and see some of the senior presentations. She felt fortunate she was able to participate and 468 
thanked the staff who help coordinate that. 469 
 470 
Mr. Post thanked the staff at FRES for the popcorn component, it was great to be in the school and see the seriousness with 471 
which the students and staff took the testing. It was fun for him and he thanked them again. He thought the presentations tonight 472 
were great. Mr. Vanderhoof makes a good point, calling in remote he did not have some of the relevant material that was being 473 
discussed.  474 
 475 
Chairman Kofalt acknowledge and apologized for the late arrival of the technology committee document. He also wanted to 476 
acknowledge and thank the librarians for coming in and the PTO for everything they have been doing to support the schools. 477 
  478 

XVI. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 479 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Golding SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to enter Non-Public Session to discuss personnel matters 480 
RSA 91-A: 3 II (C) at 9:26pm. 481 
Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried unanimously. 482 
 483 
  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 484 
The Board entered public session at 10:46pm.    485 
 486 



 

   

A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. Mannarino and SECONDED by Mr. Golding. 487 
Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried unanimously. 488 
 489 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 490 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Golding and SECONDED by Mr. Mannarino to adjourn the Board meeting at 10:46pm. 491 
Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried unanimously.  492 
 493 
Respectfully submitted, 494 
Kristina Fowler 495 
 496 























 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Haleigh Abell 
FROM: Peter Weaver 
DATE: May 25, 2022 
RE: Resignation 
 
 
In accordance with Policy GCQC: 
 
“A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted 
to the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date 
approved by the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board.  
 
I am in receipt of your email dated May 20 that you intend to resign your position as ABA 
Therapist effective June 10. Thank you for your service and we wish you well in the future. 
 
 
 
 
 
CC: WLC School Board 
        Personnel Folder 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and 
responsible citizenship. 

              Peter Weaver                                                      Ned Pratt                                                       Kristie LaPlante                   
Superintendent of Schools                           Director of Student Support Services                   Business Administrator           

  


	WLC School Board Agenda 6.14.22
	Super Board Report 6.22
	WLC Principal Report June 2022
	June 2022 WLC Principal's Report
	smore_newsletter (11)

	FRES Principal Report June
	Curriculum Coordinator Report 6.6.22
	6.14.22 Curriculum Coordinator Report
	6.14.22 21-22 LCS STAR Data Addendum
	6.14.22 21-22 WLC STAR Data Addendum
	6.14.22 21-22 FRES STAR Data Addendum

	NHSBA Call for Resolutions
	General Assurances FY 2023
	WLCTA Board Report
	DFA-Investment Policy for Annual Adoption
	IJL Library Materials 4th Read v2
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 5.24.22
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 5.24.22
	IJL - Why we need a policy and procedure - IJL - Why we need a policy and procedure

	Resignation Letter Haleigh Abell

